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Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal activities and review of business

Gallaher Group Limited (“the Company”} acts as an imvestment holding company The Company's principal source
of mncome 1s dividends from its investments, namely shares in wholly-owned subsidiaries The timing of such
dividends 1s determined by the Boards of the subsidiaries, in conjunction with the Company No ordinary dividends
were recelved from subsidianes during the year (2011 £2,410,316,000) After accounting for net financing costs,
exchange losses and other income, the Company reported a loss before tax of £5,949,000 for the year (2011 profit
of £2,407,076,000) The directors are of the opimion that the Company 1s a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on that basis (see note 1}

Results and dividends

The Company’s profit and loss account set out on page 5 shows a loss on ordmnary activities after taxation of
£4,775,000 (2011 profit of £2,398,330,000) No ordinary dividends were declared or paid during the year (2011
£2.410,316,000)

Key performance indicators

Given the nature of the busmess, the Company’s directors believe that analysis using key performance indicators
other than the results above for the Company is not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of the
development, performance or position of the business

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties that affect the Company include interest rate nsk, hiquidity nisk, foreign
currency risk and credit sk These nsks are partly managed at the Group level and partly at an mdividual business
unit level Further information on financial nsk management 1s contained in note 10 to these financial statements

Charitable and polhitical donations

No political or charitable donations were made 1n the year (2011 £ml)

Directors

A hst of the directors, together with dates of appointment and resignation, 1s given on page 1 No director held any
mterest 1n the shares of the Company during the year No director had any nterests during the year 1n any matenal
contract with the Company The Company has made qualifying third party indemmty provisions for the benefit of
1ts directors which were made during the year and remain 1n force at the date of this report

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

= so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s
unaware, and

¢ the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of $418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed therr willingness to continue in office as auditor

Ap

~Board of Directors
signed &n behalf of the~Board

Samuel Pelichet, Director
25 March 2013




Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to

¢ select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistentty;
» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the gomng concern basis unless it 15 mappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities




Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Gallaher Group Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Gallaher Group Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 16 The financial reporting
framework that has been apphed in their preparation 15 applicable law and Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, i accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilibes Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1 accordance with apphcabie law
and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the annual report to dentify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or tconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

* pive a tree and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts loss for the year
then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
o have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opnion on other matter presenibed in the Companies Act 2006

» In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

e the financial statements are not i agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

s we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Anthony Morris (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

Do Mo 2013




Gallaher Group Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 December 2012

Income from ordinary shares in subsidiary undertakings
Administrative expenses

Exchange losses

Other income

Interest payable and other finance charges
interest receivable and other finance income
Finance costs - net

{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation

(Loss)/profit for the year

The results above relate to continuing operations

Note

2012 2011
£000 £000
- 2,410,316

- (28)
(3,643) (2,403)
i -
(5,494) (5,151)
3,187 4,342
(2,307) (809)
(5,949) 2,407,076
1,174 (8,746)
4,775) 2,398,330

The Company has no recogmised gans or losses other than the resulis above and therefore no separate statement of

total recogmised gains and losses has been presented.




Gallaher Group Limited

Balance sheet
31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 7 3,060,427 3,064,070
Current assets
Debtors 8 4,980 5,113
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (426,575)  (425,576)
Net current habihties (421,595) (420,463)
Net assets 2,638,832 2,643,607
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 65,714 65,714
Capital contribution reserve 12 7,504 7,504
Share premium account 12 138,381 138,381
Revaluation reserve 12 1,756,529 1,756,529
Capztal redemption reserve 12 7,872 7,872
Profit and loss account 12 662,832 667,607
Total equity shareholders’ funds 2,638,832 2,643,607

The financial statements of Gallaher Group Limited (registered number 03299793) were approved by the Board of
Durectors on 25 March 2013

half of the Board of Directors

Samuel Pelichet
Director




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

1. Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards The
particular accounting policies adopted are described below

As permitted under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not prepared consohdated financial
statements since 1t 1s a wholly owned subsichary undertaking of JT Europe Holding BV, a company registered in the
Netherlands, which prepares consolidated financial statements

Gomg concern

The financial position of the Company, 1ts cash flows and hiquidity position are described in note 10 to the accounts
This includes an explanation as to how its financial risk management and exposures to credit risk and hquidity risk
are managed at the Group level The majority of the creditors classed as due with one year, whilst technically
repayable on demand are not expected to be repaid within one year The amounts that are expected to be repaid over
the next year are matched against amounts that are expected to be recerved from other group companies either as
dividends or repayment of the current receivable balances

The Company 1s a holding company and indirectly owns several subssdiartes which deliver both strong profits and
positive cash flows, notably Gallaher Limited in the UK, JTI Ireland Limuted and JT1 Kazakhstan LL.C The latest
mnternal business plans of these companies, together with those of the other subsidiaries, have been considered by the
directors

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation the Company has adequate resources to continue
n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts

Cash flow statement

The Company has adopted the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised) Accordingly a cash fiow
statement has not been included 1n these financial statements as the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary
undertaking of Japan Tobacco Inc, which has informed the directors of its intention to prepare a consohdated cash
flow statement which incorporates the cash flows of the Company

Revenue recognition

The Company’s income comprises dividends from subsidiary undertakings and interest on loans provided to Group
companies Interest income 1s recognised on an accruals basis and dividends receivable are recogmised when the
company’s right to receive payment has been established

Forelgn Currencies

Transactions i foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are retranslated into sterling at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account

Dividends

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recogmsed as a lability i the Company’s financial statements in the
period 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or, in the case of mnterim dividends, when
they are declared

Current taxation

Current taxation, mncluding the UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all uming differences that have ongmnated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future, have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Group’s
taxable profits and its results, as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses 1n
tax assessments i periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying iming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods m which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

Fixed asset investment

Fixed asset investments comprise the Company’s investments n its subsidianies, which are carried at historical
valuations, less provision for impaument where appropriate The Company’s investment in euro denominated
preference shares issued by a substdiary, Gallaher Limited, are retranslated nto sterling at the exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account

Debtors

Debtors comprise amounts owed by group companies, prepayments and accrued income They are measured at
amortised cost using the effecuve interest method less impairment

Creditors

Creditors are pnmarily related amounts owed to group companies and they are mtiatly measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method

Borrowings

Interest-beanng loans are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct i1ssue costs Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis to the
mcome statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled 1n the period in which they anise All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
mncome statement 1n the period in which they are incurred

2. Dhrectors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the directors of the Company 1s borne by other companies within the Group and no specific
allocation 1s made 1n respect of the services of the directors to the Company Accordingly their emoluments have not
been disclosed 1n these financial statements

The Company has no employees, other than the directors




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

3 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor’s remuneration of £5,000 in respect of the statutory audit of the financial statements of the Company has
been bome by Gallaher Limited, a related group company (2011 £5,000) The auditors have received no other
remuneration during the year in respect of services provided to this company

4. Income from ordinary equity shares in subsidiary undertakings
2012 2011
£000 £000
Dividends received and credited to income in the year
Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limited - 2,410,316
5. Finance costs - net
2012 2011
£000 £000
Interest payable and other finance charges
- on loans from Group undertakings (5,494) (5,151)

(5,494) (5,151)
Interest recervable and other finance income

- income from preference shares m subsidiary undertaking 3,187 4,342

3,187 4,342
Finance costs - net (2,307) (809)
6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

a) Analysis of the tax (credit)/charge for the year

2012 2011
£000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Adjustments to tax charge i respect of prior periods - 9,894
Current year group rehief (1,993) (2,073)
Total current tax (1,993) 7,821
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences in the year 819 925
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities (1,174) 8,746




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)
b) Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax mn the UK at 24 5% (2011 26 5%)
The differences are explamed below

2012 2011
£000 £000
(Loss)profit on ordinary activities before tax (5.949) 2,407,076
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) (1,457) 637,875
Effects of
Timimg differences relating to financial instruments (647) (700)
Non-taxable dividends recerved (781)  (639,885)
Non-deductible expenditure and other items 892 637
Adjustments to tax charge n respect of prior periods - 9,894
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (1,993) 7,821

A reduction n the corporation tax rate to 23% from 1 April 2013 was enacted in Finance Act 2012 prior to the
balance sheet date Further decreases to 21% from 1 April 2014 and 20% from | Apnl 2015 have been announced,
subject to enactment of Finance Bill 2013

¢) Analysis of deferred tax

2012 2011
£000 £000
Movements during the year n the net deferred taxation asset
At | January 2,642 3,567
Amount charged in the profit and loss account {660) (713)
Amount charged 1n the profit and loss account - effect of tax rate change (159) (212)
At 31 December 1,823 2,642

Deferred tax assets have been recogmsed in respect of temporary differences ansing on derivative financial
nstruments because it 1s more hkely than not that these assets will be recovered There was no unprovided deferred
tax at 31 December 2012 (2011 £nil)

10




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

7. Fixed asset investments

Ordinary Preference

shares in shares 1n

subsidrary subsicdiary
undertakings  undertakings Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2012 2,900,100 163,970 3,064,070
Exchange adjustments - (3,643) {3,643)
At 31 December 2012 2,900,100 160,327 3,060,427

In 1997, the Company acquired 100% of the ordinary share capital of Gallaher Limited The historical cost of this
Investment was £232,305,000 Followmng the acqusition, the investment was valued at £2,900,000,000 by the
directors, based on external advice, the difference between the historical cost and the valuation bemng credited to a
revaluation reserve The Company’s mvestment in Gallaher Limited euro-denominated preference shares and its
nvestments i other subsidiaries are carried at a director’s valuation, which 1s comparable to historical cost

Duning 2008 and 2009, as part of corporate re-organisations, the Company transferred all of its mvestment m
Gallaher Limited to another direct subsidiary, Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limited (“GOHL™), 1n exchange for
ordmary shares 1ssued by GOHL

The mvestment in Gallaher Limited preference shares comprises 195 million non-voting variable rate cumulative
preference shares of €1 each The Company receives dividends based on 3-month Eurtbor plus 1 25% per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears On winding up, the preference shareholders rank above ordinary shareholders and are
entitled to €1 per share and any dividends accrued but unpaid in respect of their shares In the opimion of the
directors, the carrying value of the preference shares approximates their fair value

The directors have performed an annual impairment review and there 1s no indication of impairment at 31 December
2012

Gallaher Group Lirmuted 15 the beneficial owner of all of the equity share capital of its direct subsidiaries The direct
subsidiaries at 31 December 2012, both of which are unlisted, are shown below

Country of
Name incorporation Principal activity
Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limited Great Britain Investment holding company

JTI (UK) Finance PLC Great Britain Finance company




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

8. Debtors
2012 2011
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - group rehef 1,993 2,073
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - other 1,164 398
3,157 2,471
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax assets (note 6) 1,823 2,642
4,980 5113

The carrying value of debtors approximates the fair value Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and
repayable on demand There 1s no provision for impairment

9. Creditors

2012 2011
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - loans and interest payable 426,575 425,576

The carrymg value of creditors approximates the fair value Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured and
repayable on demand

10.  Financial risk management

The Company’s exposure to funding and liquidity, interest rates and foreign exchange 1s managed in line with JT
Group’s treasury policy framework These nisks are partly managed at the Group level and partly at an individual
business unit level

The Company does not enter mto or trade financial nstruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes

Interest rate risk management
The Company has nterest bearing financial assets and liabihties

The Company’s financial assets are held for short periods before being used for working capital funding and the
Company does not actively manage the interest rate risk on these assets The interest rate exposure on the borrowings
1s managed with an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings

The sensitivity analyses below have been deterrmined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and
non-denvative instruments at the reporting date A 1% movement has been used and represenis management’s
assessment of a reasonable possible change

If mterest rate had been 1% higher/lower and all other varables were held constant, the impact on the profit/loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would be a decrease/increase of £2,649,000 (2011 increase/decrease of
£2,609,000) This 1s mamly attmbutable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its vanable rate cash deposits
and borrowings

12




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

10.  Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk management

The Company manages the liquidity nisk of financial iabilities by maintaining sufficient hquid financial assets and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the
creditors classed as due with one year, whilst technically repayable on demand are not expected to be repaid within
one year The amounts that are expected to be repaid over the next year will be matched against amounts that are
expected to be recerved from other group companies either as dividends or repayment of current receivables balances

The Company has no denvative financial instruments Non-derivative financial habilities at 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011 comprise loans from Group undertakings that bear interest based on LIBOR plus a margin

Foreign currency risk management

The Company has undertaken certain transactions denomunated in Euros Hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations artse Exchange rate gains or losses are recognised in the profit and loss account n the period they are
incurred

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company’s only foreign currency exposure relates to its Euro
denomnated investment 1n preference shares i1ssued by Gallaher Limited, and the dividend income receivable
thereon

The table below details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% wncrease and decrease in the sterling rate against the Eurc
for both years, with all other vanables remaining constant A 10% movement in exchange rates based on the level of
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and lhabilities represent management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change mn foreign exchange rates The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items

Increase/(decrease)
mn profit

2012 2011

£000 £000
10% strengthemng of sterling
Euro (14,575)  (14,906)
10% weakening of sterling
Euro 17,814 18,219

Credit risk management

Credit risk relates to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 1n a financial loss to
the Company The Company’s only financial assets are receivables owed by related parties

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded 1n the financial statements, represents the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk '

13




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

11.  Called up share capital

2012 2011
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
657,142,748 ordinary shares of 10p each 65,714 65,714
The Company has unhmuted authorised share capital
12.  Reserves
Capital Share Captal Profit
contribution premium redemption Revaluation and loss
reserve account reserve reserve account
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At | January 2012 1,504 138,381 7.872 1,756,529 667,607
Loss for the year - - - - (4,775}
At 31 Decemnber 2012 7,504 138,381 7.872 1,756,529 662,832

Caputal contribution reserve

Following the acquisition of the Company by Japan Tobacco Inc n Apnl 2007, 1,444,926 share options held by
eligible employees under the Savings related share option schemes (“SRSOS”) were settled directly by JT at the
acquisition share price of £11 40 per share. The cash amount received by the Company from the employees 1n respect
of these share 1ssues, being the appropnate share option price at the date of grant, has been credited to a capital

contribution reserve

Caputal redemption reserve

Upon the buy back of its own shares by the Company, the nomimal value of the shares cancelled 1s transferred to a
capttal redemption reserve in accordance with Section 170(1) of the Companies Act 1985

13. Reconcihation of movements in sharehelders’ funds

(Loss)/profit for year
Dividends paid on ordinary equity shares

Net decrease 1n shareholders’ funds
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January

Shareholders’ funds at 31 December

2012 2011
£000 £000

(4,775) 2,398,330
- (2/410,316)

{4,775) (11,986)
2,643,607 2,655,593

2,638,832 2,643,607




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2012

14.  Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemptions offered by Financial Reporting Standard No 8 there 1s no disclosure mn the
financial statements of transactions with entities that are part of Japan Tobacco Inc and its subsidianies

15. Contingencies

The Company has contingent habilities mn respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters ansing in the
ordmary course of business It 1s not anticipated that any material habilities will arise from the contingent habilities
At 31 December 2012, the Company had no guarantees in respect of the financial obligations of subsidiaries
(2011 £ml) In addition, the Company has provided a guarantee in respect of the financial obligations of Gallaher
Limited related to the performance of interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £250,000,000 which were
transferred durmg 2009, mncluding all future cash flows under the swap contracts At 31 December 2012, the
Company had no contingent habilities in respect of guarantees given in respect of third parties (2011 £ntl)

16.  Ultimate holding company and consohidation

The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of JT1 (UK) Management Ltd, a company incorporated i Great Britain
and registered in England and Wales

The smallest group in which the results of the Company are consohdated is JT Intemmational Group Holding B V
(formerly JT Europe Holding B V'), registered in Netherlands Copies of the consolidated financial statements of
JT International Group Holding BV may be obtained from Vreelandseweg 46, Hilversum, Noord-Holland,
Netherlands 1216

Japan Tobacco Inc, which 1s registered in Japan, 1s regarded as the ultimate holding company and the largest group
in which the results of the Company are consolidated Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Japan
Tobacco Inc may be obtained from 2-2-1 Toranomon, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-8422, Japan
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

MANAGING BOARD REPORT

General

JT International Group Holding B V (the “Company”) and 1its subsidiartes (together referred to
as the “Group” or “JTT”) are a leading mulunational tobacco busmess with a strong portfolio of
brands deployed across numerous markets around the world JT Internatonal Group Holding
B V 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Japan Tobacco Inc (“JT”) ITI has a license agreement
with JT, granting JTI the exclusive nights to use certain JT wademarks outside the Umited States,
Japan and China

Pursuant to new Dutch law effective January I, 2013, the Company shall pursue a policy of
having at least 30% of the seats on the Managing Board held by men and at least 30% of the seats
held by women Guven the recent enactment of the new law and the fact that no new Managing
Board Members have been appointed since January lst, the Company did not meei the above-
mentioned gender balance in 2012 The JTI Group will continue to strive for an adequate and
balanced composition of its Managing Board in future appomntments, by taking into account all
relevant selection criteria, including but not lmrted to gender balance and executive experience

1 Developments in the period ended December 31, 2012

The JTT Group delivered a strong performance 1n 2012 and has exceeded the Full Year eamings
growth target Our volume performance (+2 5%) was partly through acquisition but also as a
result of organic growth, driven by the impressive volume mcrease of our Global Flagship Brands
(GFB) (+4 8%), in particular Winston and LD In Europe, we have successfully grown volume
this year, an outstanding achievement considering the strong economic difficulties i the region
Furthermore, we have again grown our share n almost all of our key markets and improved our
share of value 1n Russia

OQur financial results have also been strong with Core Revenue' and EBITDA? growtng 13% and
23%, respectively, at constant rates of exchange On a reported basis, this translates to growth of
5% and 9% for Core Revenue and EBITDA respectively, due to the strength of the US dollar
against our major trading currencies

Oa August 14, 2012 JT1 Group acquired all outstanding share capital of Gryson NV and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Gryson”) Gryson has established an important presence
in the Roll Your Own (“RYO") and Make Your Own (“MYQO") markets across Europe, tncluding
France, Belgum, Luxembourg, Spain and Portugal, as well as in a number of other countries
Through this acquisition, the Company enhanced uts presence 1n the growing RYQ/MYO
segment Total cash consideration of USD 634 mullton was paid to the selling shareholders

1
Core revenue does not include revenue trom distnburion, contract manufactunng and other peripheral businesses
2
Operating result adding back deprecianon, impairment amortization, restructunng gains and losses and all JT cross charges (service cross

charge and rovalties)
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In June 2012, the JTI Group set up a new multicurrency syndicated credit facility with banks of
EUR 1 billion for 5 years, 1n order to safeguard future potential funding requirements The
facility 15 guaranteed by JT Inc

2 Financial position as at year-end 2012

The consolidated balance sheet as at year-end 2012 includes intangible fixed assets for an amount
of USD 16,579 mullion (2011 USD 17,157 million)} Total assets amount to USD 29,829 million
(2011 USD 29,149 million) Total group equity of the Company amounts to USD 20,031 mllion
(2011 USD 18,973 mullion) Current liabilitzes at year-end amount to USD 5,460 million (2011
USD 5,757 million)

3 Result analysis

Net sales were USD 13,096 million (2011 USD 12,545 rmullion), an increase of USD 551 million
(2011 1ncrease USD 971 mullion) or 4 4% (2010 8 4%) compared to the previous financial year
We refer to paragraph 1 for further details on the result analysis

4 Risk exposure

Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results to differ matenially from those
expressed 1n any forward-looking statement include, without limitation

1 health concerns relating to the use of tobacco products,

2 legal or regulatory developments and changes, inciuding, without lmitation, tax increases and
restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, and governmental
mvestigations and privately imposed smoking restrictions,

litigation and claims,

our ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry,

our ability to successfully expand internationally,

competition and changing consumer preferences,

the mpact of any acquisitions or similar transactions,

global economic conditions, and

fluctuations m foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw matenals

D00~ O b W

JTI conducts business on a multi-national basis in a wide vanety of foreign currencies and, as
such, uses denvative financial mstruments to reduce cash flow volaulity associated wath foreign
exchange rate changes In 2012 and 2011, JTI used foreign currency forwards and swaps to
economically hedge its exposure to fluctuations in Euro, GBP, Swiss Francs, Russian Ruble,
Turkish Lira, Tarwan Dollar, Brazihan Real and certain other currencies All foreign currency
denivative contracts have matunities of twelve months or less
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JTI does not designate denvative instruments it accounting hedpe relationships Accordingly, all
changes 1n the fair values of denvatives are recorded m the statement of income

As a result of the use of derivative mstruments, JTT 1s exposed to the nsk that counterparties to
derwvative contracts will fail to meet thewr contractual obligations To mutigate the counterparty
credit nsk, the Company has a policy of only entering into contracts with carefully selected major
financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors, and maimntains strict dollar
and term hmats that correspond to each nstitution’s credit raing The Company’s established
polictes and procedures for mitigating credit nsk on principal transactions include reviewing and
establishing limits for credit exposure and continually assessing the creditworthiness of
counterparties At December 31, 2012 there were no sigmficant concentrations of credit risk with
any mdividual counterparty or groups of counterpartics related to the Company’s use of
dervative contracts JTD’s established policies and procedures for mingating credit nisk on
prncipal transactions include reviewing and establishing limits for credit exposure and
continually assessing the crediutworthiness of counterparties ISDA agreements with
counterparties give JTI the option to net amounts due from JTI to a counterparty with amounts
due to JTI from a counterparty reducing the maximum loss from credit nisk tn the event of
counterparty default At December 31, 2012 there were no significant concentrations of credit
nsk with any individual counterparty or groups of counterparties related to JTI's use of denvative
contracts

5 Research and development

Costs incurred on development projects would be recogmized as intangible fixed assets when it 13
probable that JTI will achteve economic benefits 1n the future, considering its commercial and
technological feasibility, and costs can be measured rehiably However, as these costs do not meet
the aforementioned critenia, research and development costs are expensed as incurred For 2012,
the research and development costs amount to USD 73 nullion (2011 USD 66 million)

6 Employee information

JTI employed an average number of 26,593 employees durmng 2012 (2011 26,812)
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7 Distribution of earnings

The distribution of the earnings of the Company 1s at the disposal of the general meeting of
shareholders The Managing Board proposes that the 2012 net result 15 added to the retained
earmnings The financral statements do not yet reflect this proposal.

8 Future Outlook

Despite continued challenges from the economic and repulatory environment, JTI Group is
committed to continue delivering 10% profit growth at constant rates of exchange The Company
forecasts a further increase of Core Revenue and EBITDA, driven by GFB volume growth and
strong pricing

2013 capex investment levels will increase from those 1n 2012, predominantly due to
manufacturing and infrastructure projects Research and Development investments remain
broadly consistent with 2012 Management expects that future cash flows will be sufficient to
repay existing external debt upon matunity Headcount 1s planned at optimized levels sufficient to
meet the requirements of the business as 1t continues to grow

On March [, 2013 JTT acquired all the outstanding shares of Al Nakhia Tobacco Company S AE
and Al Nakhla Tobacco Company — Free Zone S A E (collectively, “Nakhla”) Headquartered
Egypt, Nakhla 1s one of the world’s leading waterpipe tobacco manufacturers with an important
presence in its home market The acquisition of Nakhla offers the Company an opportunity for
growth 1n the waterpipe segment and widens the Company’s brand portfolio, 1n line with our
strategy to address the needs of adult consumers across a range of tobacco product calegones
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9 Others

Further information about the performance of JT can be found in the annual report 2012/2013 of
Japan Tobacco Inc, Japan, the ultimate parent company of JT International Group Holding B V

Amsterdam, May 14,2013

Managing Board:

PJO de Labouchere

GGA Vranken

A Sacki

M Iwa

J Fukuchi
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2012
(before proposed appropriation of result)

Assets

(in mmlhons of USD) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Fixed assets

Goodwnll 13,306 13,792
Trademarks, distnbution agreements

and sofiware 3273 3,365

Intangible fixed assets (1) 16,579 17,157
Land, buildings and structures 869 842

Machinery and equpment 1,769 1.651

Fixed assets under construction 206 220

Assets not used for operations - 4

Tangible fixed assets (2) 2,844 2,717
Participations in non-consolidated compames 242 213

Other securities 81 100

Deferred taxes 799 810

Financial fixed assets (3) 1,122 1,123
Total fixed assets 20,545 20,997

Current assets

Leai tobacco and consumables 2,410 2,466
Fished products 584 522
Others 311 277
Inventories (4) 3,305 3,265
Trade recervables 2,694 2,310
Other receivables 331 228
Prepaid expenses and excise taxes 1,780 1,436
Accrued income and others 124 112
Receivables and prepaid expenses (5) 4,929 4,086
Cash and cash equivalents (6) 1,050 801
Total current assets 9,284 8,152
Total assets 29,829 29,149
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Group equity and liabilities

{ux milhions of USD) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Group equity (7)

Equity attributable to equaty holder 19,875 18,824
Minornty interest 156 149
Total Group equity 20,031 18,973 ‘

Provisions (8)

Pensions and post-retirement benefits 1,318 1,011
Other benefit cbhigation 104 83
Taxes 1,787 1,838
Others 48 63
3,257 2,995

Long-term liabilities (9)
Bonds 662 1,034
Others 419 390

1,081 1,424

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities 1o

third parties (9) 433 1,021

Taxes and social secunty contributions 2,959 2,593 *

Trade accounts payable 468 535

Short-term borrowings to banks 237 402

Amounts due to atfihates (10) 167 159

Accrued expenses 965 874

Others 231 173 *
S sd0 5,157

Total equity and liabilities 29,829 29,149

* The comparative figures have been adjusted 1o 1mprove the comparabihiny
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2012

(in millions of USD)

Gross sales
Less excise taxes

Net sales (11)
Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling and related expenses
General and admmistrative expenses

Total expenses
Operating result

Result of equity accounted investments

Net interest result (12)
Net foreign exchange result
Net other financial income and expenses

Net financial result
Result on ordinary activities before taxation
Income taxes (13)

Result on ordinary activities after taxation
Minonty interest

Net result for the year

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Hedge of net investment losses, net of tax
Actuanal losses on post-employment benefit obhgations

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Comprehensive income / (loss)

2012 2011
35,354 33,963
22,258 21,418
13,096 12,545

5,933 6,036
7.163 6,509
3,338 3,218
1,503 1,384
4,841 4,602
2,322 1,907
34 24
(103) (112)
(142) (28)
(2) (4)
(247) (144)
2,109 1,787
(712) (602)
1,397 1,185
44 (37)
1353 1,148
(18) (260)
- 48
(284) (18)
(302) (230)
1,051 918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31, 2012

(in millions of USD)

* The comparative figures have been adjusted to 1mprove the comparability

(According to the indirect method) 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Net result for the year 1,353 1,148
Adjustments for
Income taxcs 712 602
Depreciation, amortization and impairments 1,592 1,671
Result of equity accounted investments (34) (24)
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss 101 67
Other non-cash items (13) 9
Net interest result 43 10¢
Mimority interest 44 37
2,445 2 444
Changes n assets and liabiliies, net of
acquired companies
Trade and other receivables (354) (360)
Inventories 12 152
Prepaid expenses and excise taxes (353) {46) *
Other assets (22) 30 *
Trade payables (52) 84 *
Taxes and social security contributions 357 120 *
Other liabilities 129 17 *
(283) (3
Cash provided from operations 3,515 3,589
Dividends received from associates 22 15
Net interest paid (26) (124)
Income tax paid (760) (593)
Net cash provided by operating activities
(carry forward) 2,751 2,887




(in millions of USD)

Net cash provided by operating
activities (brought forward)

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary
Acquisitions, net of cash recerved
Investments 1n an associate

Net cash used mn investuing activities

Cash flows used in financing activities
Net decrease in short-term borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V | AMSTERDAM

2012

(546)
46

(580)
(12)

(172)
(998)

Proceeds (repavment} of borrowing from affihates 8

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Other financing

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used i operating, investing and
financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1
Effect of exchange rate differences on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis as at December 31

(39)

2,751

(1,089)

(1,201)

461
801

(212)

1,050

2011
2,887
(503)
22
(435)
(914)
(16)
(1,627)
(327)
(15)
(1,985)
(12)
888
(75)
801

10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

General

JT International Group Holding B V , (“the Company’), having 1ts statutory seat in Amsterdam,
the Netherlands and offices in Hilversum, the Netherlands, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Japan
Tobacco Inc (*JT’), Tokyo, Japan

The Company changed 1ts legal name of JT Europe Holding B V into JT International Group
Holding BV on October 17,2012

The comparauve figures for 2011 have been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation

Operations

JT International Group Holding B V “(the Company™) and uts subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group” or “JTI”) are a leading multinational tobacco business with a strong portfolio of
brands deployed across numerous markets around the world JTI bas a hicense agreement with IT,

granting JT1 the exclusive nights to use certamn JT rademarks outstde the United States, Japan and
China

The List of directly and indirectly held investments of the Company 1s filed with the Trade
Repgister 1n line with article 2 379 sub 5 of the Netherlands Civil Code

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial instruments that have been measured at fair value, 1 accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with the financial reporting
requirements included in Section ¢ of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civid Code

US dollar financial statements

The Company belongs to a multinational, which operates on a world-wide basis  In accordance
with Article 2 362, Section 7 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the US Dollar (“USD™) 1s the
presentation currency of the Company’s financial statements All amounts in these financial
statements are recorded 1n millions of USD, unless stated otherwise

11
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General accounting principles for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

Consolidation Principles

The consohdated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and 1ts controlled
subsidiaries Control 1s achicved where the Company has the power to govern the {inancial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtamn benefits from 1its activities

Investments mn business entities over which the Company exercises significant influence (but not
control} are accounted for using the equity method of accounting Sigmificant influence 15 the
power to participate n the financial and operatng policy decisions of the investee but 1s not
control or joint control over those pohicies Under the equity method, invesiments 1n associates
arc carried 1n the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisitton changes 1n the
Company’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual
investments

Non-controlling interests i subsidiaries are identified separately from the Company’s equity
therein Those interests may imtially be measured at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
fair value of the acquiree’s 1dentifiable net assets The choice of measurement 1s made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis

Subsequent 1o acquisiiion, the carrying ameunt of non-controlling nterests 1s the amount of those
nteresis at initial recogmtion plus the non-controlling nterests’ share of subsequent changes
equity Total comprehensive income 1s attnibuted to non-controlling interests even 1f this results
n the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal 1s computed as the
difference between (1) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained nterest and (1) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), less habilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling mnterests Amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income 1n relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (1e
reclassified 1o profit or toss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities are disposed of

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation
The financial mformation relating to the Company 1s presented in the consohdated financial

statements Accordingly, 1n accordance with article 2 402 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the
Company financial statements only contain an abridged profit and loss account

12
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Foreign currencies

US Dollar 1s the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for these
consolidated financial statements

Foreign currency transactions are translated in the functional currency of each subsidiary at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At cach balance sheet date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are denomunated 1n foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at that date

Assets and labilities of the Company’s foreign operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the monthly average rate Exchange differences are recogmsed in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equny (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate)

Financial instruments

Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at face value and, if applicable, less allowances for
doubtful accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include all short-term, lghly hquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash that have contractual maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase

Dermvative mstruments and hedging activities

The Company uses derivative and non-denivative financial instruments to mitigate 1ts foreign
currency and nterest rate risk and not for speculative or trading purposes Derivatives are not
designated as accounting hedges All denvatives are recognized as assets or labilites and
measured at fauir value 1n the Company’s consohdated balance sheets Derivatives are classified as
other current asscts and other current liabilities to the extent they mature within 12 months of the
balance sheet date Changes n the fair value of derivauves are mncluded m the consolidated
statement of income n the peried in which they occur

Non-derivative instruments, such as foreign-currency-denomimnated debt, may be designated as
hedges of the net investment 1n a foreign operation Gains (losses) on these mstruments that have
been designated and have qualified as hedging instruments are included n the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net of tax basis The gain (loss) relating to the
ineffective portion, 1f any, 15 recogmzed mmmediately 1n the statement of income within net
financtal income Gains and losses accumulated 1n equiy are included n the statement of income
when the foreign operation 1s disposed of or sold

13
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Farwr Value of Financial Instruments

The Company uses fair values to measure certain financial instruments  In addition, certain non-
financial instruments are accounted for at fair value on a non-recurring basis

The Dutch Accounting Standards (“DAS™) 290 paragraph 524 states that the fawr value of
financial mstruments 1s computed based on generally accepted measurement models and
evaluation techmiques DAS 290 does not prescribe a particular valuation model The Company
therefore used three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

. Level 1 nputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabihuies that JTI
has the abihty to access at the measurement date

. Level 2 mputs are observable mputs other than Level | prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or habilities Level 2 assets and liabilities include derivative contracts whose
value 1s deterrmined using a pricing model or discounted cash flow methodologies with
inputs that are observable in the market or can be dertved principally from or corroborated
by observable market data

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable mputs that are supported by little or no market acuviy
Valuation of Level 3 assets and lhabiliies requires sigmificant management judgment to
develop estimates of fair value Estimates are not necessanly indicative of the amounts that
could be realized 1n a current market transaction

Denvauve financial instruments are recognized and measured at fair value 1n the Company’s
consolidated statement of {inancial position Carrying amounts of receivables, payables, accrued
expenses and shori-term debt approximate their fair values

The estamated fair value of long term debt 1s disclosed i note 11 Fair values are esuimated based

on market prices (for public debt) or interest rates currently available to the Company for
borrowings with sumilar terms and remaining maturities (for bank and related party debt)

Long-term liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and habilitses are valued at amortized cost

14
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Inventories

Consistent with recogmzed industry practice, inventories of leaf tobacco that must be cured for
more than 12 months are classified as current assets Inveniones are stated at the lower of
weighted-average cost or market value Inventory wnte-downs and write-offs are recorded as a
component of cost of sales

Leaf tobacco inventories mclude the following cost elements
. Leaf purchasing and overhead costs

. Storage costs duning leaf curing

. Inbound freight costs

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impawrment losses Costs mcurred after the acquisition are recogmsed as assets 1f 1t
1s probable that additional economic benefits will flow to the Company, and the benefit can be
measured rehably Other repair and maintenance costs are recognised as expense when incurred

Properties 1n the course of construction for production or admmsstrative purposes are carned at
cost less any recognized impairment loss Cost includes professional fees and, for qualfying
assets, borrowmng costs capitalized in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy
Depreciation of these assets, commences when the assets are ready for their mtended use

Depreciation charge 1s computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives

Buildings 20-50 years
Leasehold unprovements 10-20 years (or lease term, if shorter)
Machmery and equipment 3-15 years

Land 1s not depreciated

Business combinations and related goodwill

Most assets and habilities of the acquired businesses are recorded at their estimated fair values at
the acquisition date Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
net assets, including the amount assigned to 1dentifiable intangible assets Where apphicable, the
consideration 1ncludes any asset or lability resulting from a contingent censideration
arrangement, measured at its acquisiion-date far value

Goodwill arising 1n a business combination 15 recogmzed as an asset at the date that control 1s
acquired
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Based on the long-established lives of JTI's global flag brands and significant support for such
brands, a 20-year amoruization period has been selected for goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently 1f events occur or
circumstances change, which indicate that the book value might not be recoverable

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible asscts on the Company’s balance sheet are carmed at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment, and consist manly of trademarks acquired and software

Amortization 1s computed on a straight-line basis over the followmng estimated useful lives

Trademarks 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Other miangibles 3-6 years

Impairment of long-lived assets, other than geodwill

Long-lived tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impawment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit
(CGU) may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognized to the extent that the carrying
amount exceeds the ligher of the asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to seli or its value 1n use
At each reporting period, an assessment 15 made as to whether there 1s any indication that
previously recognized unpaument losses may no longer exist or may have decreased due to a
change 1n the assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount If such indication exusts,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount When the recoverable amount
exceeds the asset’s or CGU’s carrying amount, the impairment loss 1s reversed up to a celling of
the lower of the estimated recoverable amount or the carrying amount that would have been
determmed, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogmzed for the asset 1n prior
years

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are transferred to the Company All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalized as part of the tangible fixed assets at the present
value of the mimmum lease payments and depreciated over thewr useful economic hives or the
lease term, whichever is shorter The corresponding lease commitments are shown as obligatons
to the lessor and the interest element of lease obhgations 1s charged to the statement of 1ncome
over the lease term  Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of income
over the lease term on a straight-line basis
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Retirement Benefits

In alignment with the Dutch Accounting Standards (“DAS™) 271, “Employee Benefits”,
paragraph 101, JTI elects to apply IAS 19

The Company offers both defined benefit and defined contribution plans A defined contribution
plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contnbutions mnto a
separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contnbutions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relaung to employee service 1n
the current and prior periods A defined benefit plan 15 a posi-employment benefit plan other than
a defined contribution plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans 1s determined separately for each
plan using the projected unut credit method with actuanal valuations being carmed out at cach
balance sheet date The net defined benefit asset or habihity comprises the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, less the fair value of plan assets The present value of the defined
benefit obligation 18 computed using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds that
are denomunated in the currency i which the benefits will be pad, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation In countrics where there 15 no
deep market in corporate bonds, the discount rate reflected in this calculation 1s based on the
market rates of government bonds

Actuarial gains and losses relating to each plan are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred Past service costs are recognized 1 the statement of income on a straight line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested To the extent that the benefits are
vested immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the
Company recognizes past service cost immediately m the statement of income

The value of any defined benefit asset recognized 1s resircted 1o the sum of any past scrvice costs
not yet recognized and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan

Contnbutions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contnbutions

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
1t 15 probable that the settlement of obligation 15 required, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation

The amounts recognized as provisions are the current best esumate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting pertod by taking mto consideration the
nisks and uncertainties relaung to the obligations When the effect of the ume value of money 1s
material, the amount of a provision 1s measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation

17
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Restructuring provisions are recognized when the Company has a detailed formal plan for
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation 1n those affected that the restructuring will be
carried out Provisions include only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which
are necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated wth the ongoiwng activities of the
Company

Contingencies

The Company discloses contingent habilities in the notes to consclidated financial statements 1f 1t
has possible obligations at the year end, whose existence cannot be confirmed at that date, or 1f
the obligattons do not meet the recognition criteria of a provision

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods when the significant risks and rewards
of the goods are transferred to the buyer (usually this 1s upon delivery), the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and 1t 1s probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the entity

Revenue 15 recognized net of VAT, excise taxes, other sales related taxes, sales and marketing
incentives, ncluding promunent display fees, payments linked 1o specific performance criteria
(such as targeted sales volumes, ranging and stock availlability) and payments to support sheif
price reduction in relation to promononal activity Obligations related to sales incentives that
involve retrospective payments to cuslomers are estimated principally by reference to the
Company’s historical experence with sumlar programs and the probability that the sales
mcentive will take place

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included 1n gross revenues, while shipping
and handling costs incurred directly are included in cost of sales

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of ume to get ready for its intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets, until such tume as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
All other borrowing costs are recognized 1n the profit and loss 1n the penod mn which they are
incurred Capitalized borrowing costs were insignificant in 2012 and 2011
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Research and development
Research and development costs are expensed as mcurred
Income taxes

The tax expense for the period compnses current and deferred tax Tax 15 recogmzed in the
statement of income, except to the extent that u relates to 1tems recognized in other
comprehensive income [n this case, the tax 15 also recogmzed 1n other comprehensive income

The current tncome tax charge 1s computed on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countnies where the Company operates and generates
taxable income Management peniodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations m which apphicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes prowvisions,
where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expecied to be paid to the tax authonties The
Company classifies any penalties as a component of income tax and interest as finance expense

Deferred mmcome tax 1s recogmzed, using the hability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and habiliies and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial staiements Deferred income tax 1s determuned using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred ncome tax asset 1s realized or the deferred mcome tax hability 1s settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

Deferred income tax 1s provaided on temporary differences ansing on investments n subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax hiability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference 15 controlled by the parent and 11 1s probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and hab:lites are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to
offset current tax assets against current tax habihties and when the deferred mcome tax assets and
liabihiies relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements 1n conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Netherlands requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets, liabiliies, revenues and expenses and related disclosures,
including the disclosure of contmgent assets and habilitigs Actual results could differ from these
estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to
accounting ¢stimates are recogmsed 1n the period 1n which the estimate 1s revised 1f the revision
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affects only that penod or 1n the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods

The areas that require the most significant and sensitive judgments and estimates 1nclude

Impairment of Non-financial Assets The impairment test for goodwill 1s based on value n
use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model The cash flows are derived from the
annual plan for the following three years, and do not include restructurmg activines that the
Company 15 not yet commilted to or sigmficant future investments that will enhance the
asset base of the cash generating unit being tested

Retirement Benefits The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment
medical benefits as well as the present value of the pension obligation 15 determined based
on actuanal valuations The actuarial valuauons mvolve making assumptions about
demographics (1ncluding mortalty rates), disecount and inflation rates, and future salary
increases All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date In determiming the
appropriate discount rate for the Company’s most sigmficant plans, management uses high-
quality corporate bond yield curves reflecting the expected timing and amount of the future
benefit payments for the respective countries A consistent assumption 1s used across the
Eurozone For the other plans, the discount ratc 1s based on high-quality corporate or
government bond yields with a duration consistent with underlying pension obligations
The mortality rates are based on pubhicly available morality tables for the specific country
and include an allowance for future improvements m hife expectancy, in all countries where
this 15 available

Deferred tax assets These assels are recegmized for all avaitable tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available
agamst which the losses and deductible temporary differences can be utihzed Sigmificant
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogmized,
based upon the hikely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies

Provisions and conungencies The determination of legal and tax contingencies, and the
estimation of prowvisions for such liabilities are subject to uncertain future events, and may
extend over several years The timing and/or amount may differ from current assumptions

Statement of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared according to the indirect method

The funds in the cash flow statement consist of cash and cash equivalents Cash equivalents can
be considered as mghly Liquid investments

Cash considerations pard for investments in subsidiaries and participations in group compames
acquired are recorded as a cash flow used 1n investng activities net of any cash and cash
equivalents acquired
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Transacttons, not resuling 1n cash flows, such as financial feasing, are not recorded in the
statement of cash flows Payments of the financial lease 1nstallments are recorded as a cash flow
used 1n financing activies for the redemption component and as a cash flow used mn operational
activities for the mierest component

Differences in movements between balance sheet items from omne period to another and the
amount taken up in the cash flow statements 15 caused partly by exchange differences
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Notes to the specific items of the consolidated balance sheet

Intangible fixed assets (1)
Movements are as follows

Goodwill Trademarks Total
(m mlions of USD) distnbution

agreements
and software

Acquisiton price at lustoncal cost 18783 5,054 23 837
Accumlated amortization as of

December 31, 2011 @991) (1689 (6,680)
Book value as of December 31, 2011 13792 3365 17,157
Additions through busmess

combmations 462 81 543
Additions acquired separately - 18 I8
Amortization for the year (943) 97 (1.245)
Transfers - 3 3
Currency translation adpstments - 103 103
Book value as of December 31, 2012 13 306 3,273 16 579
Acquismon price at histoncalcost 19,245 5305 24 550
Accurmilated amonizauion as of

December 31, 2012 (5.939) (2032) (7.971)
Book value as of December 31 2012 13,306 3,273 16 579

On August 14, 2012 the Company acquired all outstanding share capital of Gryson NV and us
subsidianes (collectively referred to as “Gryson™) for an amount of USD 634 mullion
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Tangible fixed assets (2)

Movements are as follows

(m mllons of US[H

Acquisition price at historical cost
Accumulated depreciation as ot
December 31, 2011

Book value as of December 31, 2011

Addons through busmess
combmations
Adduitrons acquired separately

Book value of the disposals
Depreciation for the year
Imparments

Trans fers

Curnency translation adjustments

Book value as of December 31 2012
Acquisiion price at historical cost

Accumulated deprecianon as of
December 31, 2012

Book value as of December 31, 2012

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Land,
buildings Machmery Assets Assets not
and and under used for Total
structures equipment construction openations
1,128 3417 220 4 4769
(286) (1.766) - - (2052
842 1,651 220 4 217
13 18 - - 31
28 227 197 - 452
883 1,896 417 4 3.200
©® 12 o - 19)
@5) (298) - . (343)
- @ - - S
2 177 (206) @ (10
15 10 (@) - 21
869 1,769 206 - 2844
1166 3,755 206 - 5,127
(297) (1.986) - - (2.283)
869 1769 206 - 2844

Net transfers out mn 2012 and 2011 relate to assets transferred to assets held for sale and

intangible assets

The present value of future mmimum lease payments for assets under finance leases was USD 2
milhon at December 31, 2012 (2011 USD 2 mulhion) Of that amount, USD 1 milhion 15 due

within one year

No assets were pledged as collateral in 2012 or 2011
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Financial fixed assets (3)

Movements are as follows

(n milhons of USDY

Book value as ot December 31 2011

Purchases and loan granted

Sales and redemptions

Share n result

Diwvddends recerved

Charged to Other Comprehensive income / (loss)
Credited to Statement of Income, net

Trans fers and reclas sifications

Currency tmnslavon adustments

Book value as of December 31, 2012

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Pancipations
m Non-Con- Securtties Deterred
sohdated and deferred mcome Total
conpames charges taxes
213 100 810 1123
12 2 - 14
- @ - )
34 - - 34
2 - - (22)
- - 92 92
- - (143) (143)
- (18) 19 1
5 [0)] 21 25
242 81 799 1122

The hst of directly and indirectly held investments of the Company 1s filed with the Trade Register
1n line with article 2 379 sub 5 of the Netherlands Civil Code
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Deferred income taxes

The components for the deferred ncome taxes are as follows

(in millions of USD) 2012 2011
Temporary differences 863 847
Tax credits and carry forward losses 347 333
1,210 1,180
Offset deferred tax assets and hiabilities (289) (145)
Valuation aliowances (122) (225)
Balance as of December 31 799 810

The deferred tax assets are reflected in the balance sheet after offsetting assets and Labilities
where there 1s a legally enforceable night to offset and where the deferred mcome taxes relate to
the same fiscal authonty

The realization of deferred tax assets 1s assessed on a junsdiction-by-jurisdiction basis The
assessment 1s based upon the weight of all available evidence, including factors such as the recent

earntngs history and expected future taxable income A valuation allowance 1s recorded 1o reduce
deferred tax assets to a level which, more likely than not, will be realhized

The deferred mcome taxes include an amount of USD 134 mulhion (2011 USD 136 miilion)
which 1s of a short-term nature

Inventories (4)

The carrying amounts of mventories were as follows

{in millions of USD) 2012 2011

Leaf tobacco and consumables 2,410 2,466
Fimished products 584 522
Others 311 277
Balance as of December 31 3,305 3,265
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Receivables, prepaid expenses and accrued income (5)

Recervables and prepaid expenses consist of

{in milhons of USD) 2012 2011

Net trade receivables 2,694 2,310
QOther receivables 331 228
Prepaid expenses and taxes 1,780 1,436
Accrued income and others 124 112
Balance as of December 31 4,929 4,086

The trade receivables are stated net of allowances of USD 17 mulhion (2011 USD 18 milhion)

The recervables, prepaid expenses and accrued income include an amount of USD 202 million
(2011 USD 203 muilhon) of a long-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents (6)
Included m the cash balance above as of December 3!, 2012 1s USD 172 million (2011 USD 113

million) keld by the Iraman subsidiary JTI Pars PJS Co Due to international sanctions imposed
on Iran, the subsidiary’s ability to remut funds outside of Iran 1s restricted
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Equity attributable to equity holder (7)

For the breakdown of equity attributable to equity holders, reference 1s made to the Company
balance sheet and the notes to Company financial statements

The movement in manority interest 15 as follows

(in milhions of USD) 2012 2011
Balances as of January 1 149 129
Result for the year 44 37
Currency translation adjustment 3 (4)
Adjustments ansing from change mn non-controlling interest 3 5
Dividend paid to mimority interest (43) (18)
Balances as of December 31 156 149

Provisions (8)

Provistons compnse

(xn millrons of USD) 2012 2011

Pensions and post-retirement benefits 1,318 1,011
Other benefit obligations 104 83
Taxes 1,787 1,838
Others 48 63
Balances as of December 31 3,257 2,995
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Provisions (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Company sponsors funded and unfunded defined benefit plans and defined contnbution
plans as employee retirement benefit plans The benefits on defined benefit plans are based on
conditions, such as points that employees acquired 1n compensation for each year of service, the
payment rate, years of service, average salary in therr final year of service before retirement and
others

Special termination benefits may be provided to employees on their leave before the usual
retirement date under certain cwrcumstances

Schedule of defined benefit obligations

Post-

Pension retirement
(1n mmllions of USD) benefits benefits Total Total
2012 2012 2012 20t1

Change in defined benefit abhigation
Present value at 1 January 3,255 269 3,524 3,401
Current service cost 39 5 64 59
Interest cost 149 12 [61 175
Curtariments, settlements and special termimation 7 2 9 24
benetits

Past service ¢ost (3] 3 (6) 2
Benefit payments (189) 10y {199) (176)
Conlnbutions by plan members 11 - 11 13
Actuanal losses 465 39 504 62
Foreign exchange and other 128 8 136 (36)
Piesent value at 31 December 3,876 328 4,204 3,524
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Provisions (continued)

Schedule of plan assets
(i tmullions ot USD)

Change 1n plan assets

Fair value at | January
Expected return on plan assets
Company contributions
Benefit payments
Contribution by plan members
Transter in

Actuanal gams

Foreign exchange and other

Fair value at 31 December

Actual retum on scheme assets

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Post-

Pension retirement
benetfits benefits Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2011
2,700 - 2,700 2,585
112 - 112 140
114 1 115 104
(134) (2) (136) (133)
il - 11 13
- 23 23 -
123 2 125 14
107 1 108 (23)
3,033 25 3,058 2,700
235 2 237 154

The Company expects to contribute USD 98 mulhon to its funded defined benefit pension plans
and USD1 milhon to its funded post-reurement medical plans 1n 2013
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Provisions (continued)

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations and plan assets

The amounts recogmzed m the balance sheets and the funded status at December 31, 2012 and

2011 are as follows

Post-
Pension retirement
benefits benefits Total Total
(in mulhions of USD} 2012 2012 2012 201¢
Present value of funded obligations (3,103) (79) (3,182) (2,683)
Fair value of plan assets 3,033 25 3,058 2,700
Surplus / (deficit) of funded plans (70) (54) (124) 17
Present value of unfunded obligations (773) (249) {1,022) (841)
Unrecogmzed past service credil - " ) 2)
Net hiability in the balance sheets (843) 304 (1,147) (826)
Presented as
Non-current assets 1N - 171 185
Non-current habilines (1,014) (304) (1,318) (1,01 1)
(843) (304) (1,147) (826)

The allocation of the funded pension plans’ fair values of assets by asset category was as follows

at December 31, 2012

Asset category

Equity securities
Debt securities

Real estate

Cash and other assets

2012 2011
41% 39%
46% 50%

2% 2%
11% 9%
100% 100%

The Company’s investment strategy for pension plan assets comprises a blend of assets that are a
reasonable match for the pension habilites and assets that are targeting long-term growth. The
assets targeting long-term growth are well diversified across individual secunties, industry

sectors and countries Plan assets are rebalanced penodically in ine with the target asset
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Provisions (continued)

allocations The Company ayms to maintain adequate liquidity to enable immediate and medium-
term benefit payments At December 31, 2012 and 2011, excluding any self-investment through
pooled funds, none of the Company’s pension plan assets had investments in JT shares, or
property occupied by or other assets used by JT International Holding BV or JT

Matters related to actuarial assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used to determimne the results are included m the followmg
table The assumptions are those apphcable to the net Liability at the balance sheet date, and the
costs for the annual period following that balance sheet date

Post Post

Pension retirement Pension retirement

benefits benefits benefits benefits

2012 2012 2011 2011

Discount rate 371% 3 83% 4 57% 4 58%
Expected long-term retumn on plan assets {H (1) 4 08% -
Rate of compensation mcrease 3 30% 327% 330% 325%
Inflation rate 237% 2 06% 249% 207%

(1) The expected return on asset assumption will no longer be relevant under [AS 19 rev
2011, therefore this assumption 1s not applicable at this date for the determination of the
2013 pension and post-retirement benefit expenses

The expected rate of return on plan assets assumption at December 31, 2012 1s determuned by
reference to the sum of the product of the long-term target asset allocation and expected return for
each class of assets However, the estimate 1s adjusted as necessary to the exient that actual asset
allocation differs sigmificantly from the target allocation if the pension fund 15 not expected to
rebalance to the target in the short term

Healthcare cost trend rate assumptions for the post-retirement benefit plans were as follows

2012 2011
Health care cost trend rate for next year 5 78% 6 06%
Ultimate healthcare cost trend rates 525% 542%
Years to ulumate rate 3 5
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Provisions (continued)

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for post-
retrement benefit plans A one-percentage-point change 1n the assumed healthcare cost trend
rates would have had the followmg effects on the Company’s net periodic benefit cost for 2012
and on the benefit obligation at December 31, 2012

(in millions of USD) 1-percentage 1-percentage

point increase  point decrease
(an mullions of USD) (in mulhons of USD)

Effect on sum of service cost and nterest cost for 2012 4 3)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation at
December 31, 2012 63 (50}

Experience adjustments based on results of defined benefit obligations and plan assets

The following table contains a summary of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the farr value of the plan assets and the experience adjustmenis ansing on these since the

Company’s transition to IAS 19 on | January 2010

(in mulhons of USD)

Post-
Pension retirement
benefits benetfits Total Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 2010
Present value of defined benefit obhigations {3.8706) {328) (4,204) (3,524) (3,401)
Farir value of scheme assels 3,033 25 3,058 2,700 2,585
Deficit 1n the scheme (843) (303) (1,146} (824) (816)
Expenence (gains) tosses on scheme Liabilitics 58 7 65 (CL)] (14
Expenence gains on scheme assets (123) (2) (125) (id (93)
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Income statement related to retirement benefits

Amounts recognized 1n the mmcome statement 1n respect of the Company’s defined benefit
schemes are as follows

(in mullions of 1JSD) Pension Post retirement Total Total

benefits 2012 benefits 2012 2012 2011
Current service cost 59 5 64 59
Past service cost 9) 3 6) 2
Curtailment, settlements and special 7 2 9 25

termnation benefits

Expected return ot plan assets (112) - 12y (140)
Interest cost 149 12 161 175
94 22 116 121

Of the expense for the year, USD 23 million (2011 USD 26 million) was included in the income

statement as cost of sales, USD 33 mullion (2011 USD 37 mullion) as administrative expenses,
USD 50 mllier (2011 USD 35 mullion) as finance expense and USD 10 mullion (2011 USD 23
mullion} as restructuring and impairment expense

The cumulative actuanal gains and losses recogmzed 1n other comprehensive income since the
date of trans:tion to [FRS 1s USD 369 million (2011 USD 85 mullion)
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Other benefit obligation

The provision for other employee benefits relates to former and inactive employees, not bemng
retired, such as salary continuation, supplemental unemployment benefits, severance benefits and
disabihity-related benefits including continuation of benefits such as health benefits and e
Insurance coverage

{in millions of USD) 2012
Balance as of January 1, 2012 33
Additions 38
Withdrawals an
Balance as of December 31, 2012 104

An amount of USD |5 million 1s considered to be of a short-term nature
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Taxes

Movements 1n tax provisions are as follows

Deterred Uncertan

mcoms: tax Total
(m millions of USD) taxes positions 2012
Book value as of January 1, 2012 1022 816 1,838
Credited / (charged) to Income Statement (53) (33) (86)
Credited / (charged) to Other Comprehensn e Income / (expense) 3) - 3
Settlements - (63) (63)
Trans fers and netungs 19 - 19
Currency translation ad justments 71 19 90
Others - (8) 8)
Book value as of December 31, 2012 1,056 731 1,787

The provisions for deferred mcome taxes and uncertain tax positions can be considered to be of
as short-term nature for the amounts of USD 29 mulhion and USD 33 mulhion, respectively
Other provisions

The other provisions mainly relate to restructuring plans, hitigation cases and jubilee plans for
personnel Movements are as follows

(1n millions of USD) 2012 2011
Balance as of January 1, 63 76
Additions 45 97
Utilization $9) (14
Release of unused amounts (14) -
Transfers and reclassifications (37 (96)
Balance as of December 31 48 63

In 2012, the Company announced a restructuring plan related to its Austran distribution business
The plan principally includes employee termmation costs of USD 10 mullion and post-
employment costs of USD 2] mullion Transfers out of restructunng provision relate to the
reclassification of these amounts to post-employment habilities at year end

In 2011, the Company announced a restructuring plan that involved closure of the Hainburg
(Austna) factory and rationalization of the Vienna Regional Office The plan principally included
employee termination costs of USD 23 mullion, post-employment costs ef USD 20 million and
impairment of buildings and machimery of USD 46 millhion Transfers out of restructuring
provision wnclude USD 49 mullion to fixed assets (umpawment), USD 41 mllion to post
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employment habilines and USD 6 mullion 1o other balance sheet accounts Restructuring plans
are expected to be completed by December 2013

Long-term liabilities (9)

The long-term liabihities are as follows

(mn mflions of USDY) Long-term Current Total
habihty portion 2012
Bonds 062 402 1064
Other bank loans 1 - 1
RG valuation payment 35 31 66
Accrueed and other liabilities 383 - 383
Total book value as of December 31, 2012 1,081 433 1,514

The long-term habilities mature within 2 penod of five years The current portion of the long
term habilities 1s classified as current habilities

Bonds
At December 31, 2012, the Company had outstanding bonds of 5 75% Eurobond of GBP 250
mullion (due 2013) and 4 5% Eurobond of EUR 500 muthion (due 2014), respectively

Syndicated credit facilities to banks

At December 31, 2012 the Company had access to unused credit facilities of approxamately
3 7 bullion (2011 USD 5 2 bilhon), including USD 1 3 billion available under a commutted
syndicated facihity {2011 USD 3 2 billion)

RGI Valuation Payment

As part of 2007 Gallaher acqusition, JTI acquired a 50% interest in RJ Reynolds-Gallaher
International Sarl (“RGI™}, a joint venture with RJ Reynolds Tobacco C V' The joint venture
was termunated on December 31, 2007 and JT1 agreed to pay a valuation payment in February
2008 The remaining hability as of December 31, 2012 amounts to USD 66 mithon

Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates (10)

(i millions of USD) 2012 2011

Short-term borrowings to JT affiliates 26 8
Accounts payables 141 151
Balanace as of December 31 167 159
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Commitments and contingencies

Lease commitments

The Company leases various builldings, computer equaipment and vehicles under non-cancellable
operating leases The aggregale rental expense was USD 98 mulion and USD 111 million 1n 2012
and 2011, respectively

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

(in millions of USD) 2012 2011

Within one year 68 85
Between two and five years 136 147
After five years 54 8
Balance as of December 31 258 240

Financial commitments

The Company 1s a party to the 2007 Cooperation Agreement with the European Commission
(“EC”) to combat the contraband and counterfent of cigarettes in the European Umon Payments
totaling USD 400 mullion will be made over 15 years and used by the EC and participating
Member States to support anti-contraband and antn-counterfeit imiatives The Company pad
USD 15 milhon 1n 2012 and USD 50 mulion m 2011 as part of this Agreement In 2012, USD 5
million was remmbursed by the Company’s parent, JT, and USD 15 milhon mn 2011 The
remaining amount due w EC at December 31, 2012 1s USD 135 muthon The related expense will
be recognized as meurred

In the normal course of business the bank guarantees, 1ssued on behalf of JTI, amounted to USD
1 5 bullion and USD 1 6 bilhon as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively
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CONTINGENCIES
Tobacco Litgation

Various legal actions, proceedings, and clmims are pending or may be instituted aganst JT
International Holding BV (“JTIH”) and its subsidharies JTIH is a subsidiary of the Company
Claims related to smoking and health usually fall within the following categones (1) smoking and
health cases alleging personal 1njury brought on behalf of individual plamtiffs, (1) smoking and
health cases primanly alleging personal injury and purporting to be brought on behalf of a group
or a class of individual plamntiffs, (1n) smoking and health cases brought by governmental and
non-governmental plamnt:ffs seeking recovery of health-care costs allegedly caused by cigarette
smoking, and (1v) other claims alleging a defect in the product

While ITIH and us subsidianes have a number of valid defenses and ¢laims mn these pending
cases, litigation 15 subject to many uncertainties and 1t 1s not possible to predict with certainty
their outcome JTIH and its subsidianes could incur substantial costs 1a connection wath htigation
alleging damages resulting from the use of tobacco products or exposure to tobacco smoke or
alleging loss of taxes from allegedly 1llegal importation of tobacco products To date, JTIH has
never lost a case or paid any settlement award in connection with smoking and health-related
litigation aganst 1t or any of its subsidianes

Smoking and Health Litigation Status

There are a number of smoking and health-refated acticns pending against JTIH subsidiarics
Cases brought by individuals are pending 1n Ireland Smoking and health group or class actions
are pending in Canada Health-care cost recovery actions are pending tn Canada and Spawn

Class or group actions

Canada - In February 2005, a Quebec tral court authonzed two class actions against a JTIH
subsidhary The actions were filed n late September 2005 The first class, comprising Quebec
residents allegedly suffering from certain diseases, secks collective recovery of approximately
USD 5 2 bilhon (CAD 5 2 billion) from all defendants (which include two competing cigarette
manufacturers) 1n addition to damages for individual members and punitive damages The second
class, composed of allegedly addicted smokers m Quebec, seeks collecuve recovery of
approximately USD 17 49 billion (CAD 17 8 billion) from all defendants (which include two
competing cigarette manufacturers) in addition to individual and pumitive damages The joint trial
began in March 2012 and 1s on-going
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)

In July 2009, four class actions seeking unquantified damages were filed in Saskatchewan,
Manrtoba, Alberta and Nova Scotia against a JTIH subsidiary as well as a number of other
manufacturers participaung 1n the Canadian cigarette market In March 2010, the Saskatchewan
claim was served upon the subsidiary The Saskatchewan, Mamtoba, and Nova Scotia class
actions are currently dormant The Alberta claim was not served within one year of filing, and has
expured as a result

In July 2010, two class actions seeking unquantified damages were filed and served in British
Columbia against a JTIH subsidiary as well as a number of other manufacturers participating in
the Canadian cigarette market These class actions are currently dormant

In June 2012, a class action seeking unquanufied damages was filed in Onrano against a JTIH
subsidiary as well as a number of other manufacturers participating 1n the Canadian cigarette
market [t was served on the subsidiary in November 2012 and s currently dormant

Israel - In December 2005, a class in Isracl purporting to be composed of smokers of certain
brand categories called “Lighis” named a JTIH subsidiary as a defendant in an action seeking
USD 1 6 billton (ILS 5 8 biallion) 1n total damages from all defendants, which include a number of
distributors and manufacturers of competing products 1n the Israch market The action was served
on a distnbutor that may have indemmity rights aganst a JTIH subsidiary other than the one
named in the action The action was not, however, served on the named JTIH subsidiary The
Court of First Instance dismssed the Plunuffs’ ¢laim in March 2013, and the decision became
final on 27 Apnl 2013

Health-care cost recovery actions

Canada - In January 2001, the Province of British Columbia brought an action under 1ts Tobacco
Damages and Health-Care Costs Recovery Act agamst a JTIH subsidiary, as well as a number of
other manufacturers and others participating n the Canadian cigarette market, seeking
unquantified damages Some defendants challenged the constitutionality of the Act The Supreme
Court of Canada finally rejected that challenge in September 2005, and the action remains
pending at first instance

In August 2009, a JTIH subsidiary commenced an action 1n the Quebec Supenior Court against
the Attorney General of Quebec challenging the validity of the Tobacco-Related Damages and
Health-Care Costs Recovery Act on grounds of violation of the rule of law under the Canadian
Constitution and of jundical nights and due process n relation to property rights under the
Quebec Charter of Rights and Freedom Discovery 1s on-going
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)

In March 2008, the Province of New Brunswick filed a health-care cost recovery action against a
JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking unquantified damages These proceedings are at an early stage Discovery
1S on-going

In September 2009, the Province of Ontario filed a sumilar health-care cost recovery action
against a JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under s own Health-Care Costs Recovery
Act, sceking USD 50 billion (CAD 50 billion) in damages These proceedngs are at an carly
stage as some of the international defendants are waiting for the Court of Appeal’s judgment
further to the dismissal by the trial court of thewr apphication challenging the junisdiction of the
court

In February 2011, the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador filed a similar health-care cost
recovery action agamnst a JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Health-Care
Costs Recovery Act, seeking unquantified damages The proceedings are at an early stage as
some of the defendants are challenging the junisdiction of the court

In May 2012, the Province of Manitoba filed a health-care cost recovery action against a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under 1ts own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The subsichary was served with the
claiom n July 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage as some of the defendants are
challenging the jurisdiction of the court

In June 2012, the Province of Alberta filed a health-care cost recovery action agamnst a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking USD 10 billion {(CAD 10 billion) in damages The subsidiary was served
with the ¢laim 1n July 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage as some of the defendants may
challenge the junsdiction of the court

In June 2012, the Province of Quebec filed a health-care cost recovery action agamnst a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking USD 60 bulion (CAD 60 billion) in damages The subsidiary was served
with the claun 1n June 2012 The proceedings are at an carly stage as some of the defendants are
challenging the jurisdiction of the court

In June 2012, the Province of Saskatchewan filed a health-care cost recovery action against a
JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The subsidiary was served with the
claim in July 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage as some of the defendants are
challenging the jurisdiction of the count
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)

In September 2012, the Province of Prince Edward Island filed a health-care cost recovery action
agamst a JTIH substdiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-
Care Costs Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The subsidiary was served
with the claim 1n November 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage Some of the defendants
may challenge the junsdiction of the court

A number of defendants applied to join the Canadian Federal Government as a third party to the
actions throughout Canada In British Columbnsa, the apphicattion was challenged by the Federal
Government and dismissed at first mstance The Court of Appeal reversed the decision in part In
July 2011, the Supreme Court of Canada decided that the Federal Government could not be added
as a third party to the action in British Columbia In Nevember 2012, the Quebec Court of Appeal
denied the right of the defendants to jon the Federal Gevernment as a third panty

Spain - In February 2007, a JTIH subsichary in Spain was formally joined as a defendant, along
with a number of other manufacturers, 1n a contentious admimistrative proceeding brought by the
Junta de Andalucia against the Spanish state (as former tobacco monopoly) to recover health-care
expenditures for a number of individuals treated for alleged tobacco-related diseases The Junta’s
claim was dismissed at first instance in November 2007 on procedural grounds The Junta’s
appeal was ulimately rejected by the Supreme Court in September 2009

Following the above proceeding, in July 2008, the subsidiary in Spain was, together with the
same other manufacturers, informed of the existence of a second contentious-admimstrative
proceeding brought by the Junta de Andalucia and against the Spamsh state This claim seeks
recovery of the same health-care expenditure mentioned 1n the above proceeding and tries to
remedy the procedural defects recogmzed by the Court in the previous proceeding In January
2009, the Court notified the subsidiary that the time for the filing of the Junta’s claim was
effectively suspended by their filing a procedural motion In May 2009, the Defendants were
notified that the Junta filed their claim following such suspension Untuil early 2010, the
proceedings were effectively stayed pursuant to a brief filed by the State Attorney claiming that
the second case should not proceed until the appeal in the first contentious-administrative case
was resolved In January 2010, the Court dismissed the brief pursuant to the Supreme Court’s
decision 1n the first contentious-admnistrative case, resuming the proceedings 1n the second case
In April 2010, the State Attorney filed 1ts defense In May 2010, the Court ordered the remaining
co-defendants to file thewr defenses within 20 days In May 2010, the co-defendants filed
prebminary objections and a request that the court file be completed In June 2012, the Court
ordered the Clammants to file the missing evidence in order to complete the court file The
Clamants failed to comply with this order The case 1s pending
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Smoking and Health Litigation Claims and Defenses Generally

Plaint:ffs’ allegations of hability in smoking and health cases are based on various theones of
recovery, including neghgence, gross negligence, strict liability, fraud, musrepresentation,
defective design, farlure 1o wam, breach of express and imphed warranties, breach of special
duty, conspiracy, concert of action and violations of deceptive trade practice laws and consumer
protection statutes

Plaintiffs in smoking and health actions seek vanous forms of relief, including compensatory and
punitive damages, treble/multiple damages and other statutory damages and penalties, ¢reation of
medical monitoring and smoking cessation funds, disgorgement of profits and injunctive and
cquitable relief Defenses raised m these cases include, among other things, lack of proximate
cause, assumption of the nsk, comparative fault or contributory negligence, and statutes of
limatations or repose

Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation Claims and Defenses Generally

In certan of the pending proceedings, governmental and non-governmental plaintffs, including
insurers, are seeking reimbursement of health-care cost expenditures allegedly caused by tobacco
products and, in some cases, of future expenditures and damages as well Other relief sought by
some but not all plaintiffs includes pumtive damages, treble/muluple damages and other statutory
damages and penalties, injunction prolbiting alleged marketing and sales to minors, disclosure
of research, disgorgement of profits, funding of anti-smoking programs, disclosure of mcotine
vields, and payment of attorney and expert witness fees

Plaintiffs have asserted legal and equitable claims including that the defendants were “unjustly
enniched” by plainuffs” payment of health-care costs allegedly attnbutable to smoking,
indemmity, neghgence, strict hability, breach of express and mplied warranty, violation of a
voluntary undertaking or special duty, fraud, neghigent misrepresentation, conspiracy, public
nwsance, ¢laims under statutes goveming consumer fraud, antiirust, deceptive trade pracuces,
and false advertising In minc nstances in Canada, claims are asserted under a statute enacted
specifically to permat such an action
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Defenses raised include lack of proximate cause, remoteness of injury, failure to state a vald
claim, lack of benefit, adequate remedy at law, “unclean hands” (namely, that plaintiffs cannot
obtamn equitable rehef because they participated 1n, and benefited from, the sale of cigarettes),
lack of antitrust inyury, lack of statutory authonty to bring sut and statute of limitations In
addition, defendants argue that they should be entitled to “set off” any alleged damages to the
extent the plaintiff benefits economucally from the sale of cigarettes through the receipt of excise
taxes or otherwise Defendants also argue that these cases are improper because plaintiffs must
proceed under principles of subrogation and assignment Under traditional theories of recovery, a
payer of medical costs {(such as an insurer) can seek recovery of health-care costs from a third
party solely by “standing 1n the shoes” of the mjured party Defendants argue that plamtiffs
should be required to bring any actions as subrogates of individual health-care recipients and
should be subject to all defenses available agamnst the alleged injured panty

Other Tobacco-Related Litigation

Canada - In Apnl 2010, a class composed of tobacco growers n the province of Ontario served a
JTIH subsidiary with an action seeking USD 50 mullion (CAD 50 mullion) for an alleged breach
of contract between the Ontario Flue-Cured Tobacco Growers Marketing Board and the
subsidhary Similar proceedings were 1ssued scparately against two other manufacturers
participating in the Canadian cigarette market The proceedings are on-going

In April 2012, a JTIH subsidiary filed a claim in the Ontario Superor Court of Justice secking a
declaration that the regulations, which increase the size of the health warnings 1in Canada from
50% to 75% of the packages' display area, are unconstitutional on the grounds that they are an
unjustifiable interference with consumers’ and the company's nights to freedom of expression as
guaranteed by the Canadian Charter of Righis and Freedoms The Federal Government has filed
its statement of defense

Rest of world - In 2006, a JTIH subsidiary 1n Spain was sued under a ¢riminal procedure on
smuggling-related allegations after a tax inspection by the Spanish authorities The subsidiary
was required to establish a guarantee for its maximum potential hiabilny of approximately USD 8
million (EUR 6 milhon), which was delivered to the Court in July 2008 The tnial hearing,
scheduled to begin in April 2013, was postponed to July 2013
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A JTIH subsidiary 1in Turkey has disputed the Turkish Mimsiry of Finance’s assessment of
corporate tax for 2009 The amount of alleged tax due was assessed at USD 8 mullion (TRY 14
million) plus default interest In November 2011, the subsidiary filed a claim for the cancellation
of the assessment afier the introduction of the Turkish Tax Amnesty Law In February 2013, the
Court of First Instance cancelled the corporate tax assessment In March 2013, the Turkish
Muimstry of Finance filed its appeal

In December 2011, a JTIH subsidiary filed a claim in the High Court of Australia challenging the
constitutionality of Australia’s “plain packaging” law of I December 2011 Other tobacco
manufacturers have filed similar claims in the High Court challenging the constitutionality of the
law The ciaims were heard by the High Court 1n April 2012 In August 2012, the subsidiary’s
claim for declaratory rehief was dismissed

Litigation 15 subject 1o many uncertainties and it 1s possible that some of the obacco-related legal
actions, proceedings, or claums could be decided agamst JTIH or uts subsidiaries Determinations
of hablity or adverse rulings against other cigarette manufacturers that are defendants in similar
actions, even 1f such rulings are not final, could adversely affect the litigation agamst JTIH or its
subsidianes or indemnitees and could encourage and increase the number of such claims There
have been a number of political, legislative, regulatory and other developments relating to the
tobacco mndustry and cigarette smoking that have received wide mecha attention, such as the
various hitigation settlements in the United States and the release and wide availlability of various
industry documents These developments may negatively affect the perceplion of potential tiers
of fact with respect to the tobacco industry, possibly to the detriment of certain pending Litigation,
and may prompt the commencement of addiional similar litigation

Although it 15 impossible to predict the outcome of such events on pending litigatton and the rate
at which new lawsuits are filed aganst JTIH or its subsiditanies, a sigmficant increase n hitigation
or adverse outcomes for tobacco defendants could have an adverse effect on JTIH JTHH and 1its
subsidiaries behieve that they have a number of vahd defenses to any such actions and wintend to
defend such actions vigorously

Management 1s unable to make a meamngfu! estimate of the amount or range of loss that could
result from an unfavorable outcome of pending tobacco-related lhitigation, and JTIH has not
provided any amounts 1n 1ts consohdated financial statements for unfavorable outcomes, 1f any
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Other Litigation

A JTIH subsidiary 1n the United Kingdom terminated a distnbution contract in March 2005, and
commenced an action before the English High Court for damages and a declaration that the
termination was valid because of numerous material breaches The former distributor
counterclaimed for unlawful termination, ultimately seeking around USD 500 mullion in
unparticularized damages from the termination The High Court dismissed the counterclaim and
entered judgment for the subsidiary in April 2008 In distantly related lugation, a busmess
partner of the former distributor filed an action in Cyprus against the former distributor and the
subsidiary, seeking more than USD 25 mullion 1n unparticulanzed damages for alleged breach of
an exclusive distribution agreement for Yemen An order permutting service on the subsidiary
was sct aside m February 2008

In June 2008, a JTIH subsidary in Tanzama received from the Tanzanma Fair Compention
Commussion (“FCC”) a complaint concerning a transaction m 2005 involving the purchase of
manufactunng equipment and trademarks from another company The complamnt atleges the
misuse of a dommant posiion and secks a penalty of 7% of the subsidiary’s 2005 turnover of
USD 56 million (TSH 87 7 bilhion) In a decision dated 31 March 2009, the FCC issued 1its
findings and proposed penalties agawmst the subsidiary In turn, the laver objected and requested a
full hearing In October 2009, the FCC held that 1t has junsdiction to hear and determme the
complamt against the subsidiary Accordmngly, the subsidiary filed a petition with the Tanzanan
High Court to seek a determmation of all the preliminary issues raised before the FCC The case
1s pending

JTIH and its subsidianies are also subject to other claims and smts which anse penodically
relating to contracts, income and other taxes, advertising regulation, and other matiers JTTH and
1ts subsidianes behieve that, notwithstanding the quality of defenses available to 1t in litigation
matters, 1t 15 possible that the results of its operations or cash flows or its financial position could
be matenally affected by the ulimate outcome of certain pending litigation matters Management
1s unable to predict the outcome of the litigation
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Related party transactions (10)

The Company and its subsidiaries have the following related party arrangements with 1ts parent
JT

e Royalty agreement that requires JTI to pay royalues to JT for the use of certamn tobacco
brands, a product cost sharing agreement under which JTI 1s reimbursed for certamn product
development costs,

¢ Cost sharing agreement under which JT partially remburses JTI for payments made under
the EC anti-contraband and anti-counterfeit agreement (see Note 9, financial commument

paragraph),

e Service agreement that enttles JTI to receive from JT fees for certain accounting and
administrative services

JTT’s operating income ncludes the following related-party transactions with JT and other related
parties

{1in milhions of USD) 2012 2011
Sale of leaf inventory and fimshed goods to
o JT 389 345
s  Other related parties 968 955
e Others 22 16
1,379 1,316

[ncluded in JTL's operating expenscs are the following related-party transactions with JT

(in milhons of USD) 2012 2011
Royalues 10 JT 355 328
Purchases of tobacco material, non-tobacco material and finished goods
from JT
o JT 257 283
¢ Other related parties 69 78
Others - 1
681 690
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Foreign currency arrangements (11)

The Company conducts business on a mulunational basis 1n a wide variety of foreign currencies
and 15 therefore exposed to the following nisks due to foreign exchange fluctuattons

+ The nsk that the profit or loss and cash flow 1n each functional currency 15 affected by foreign
exchange fluctuations as a result of external transacuons and ntercompany transactions 1n
currencies that are different from that functional currency

» The risk that the equity of the Company 15 affected by foreign exchange fluctuations when
equity balances denominated 1 e¢ach functional currency 1s translated mto US Dollars on
consolidation

s The nsk that the profit or loss of the Company 15 affected by foreign exchange fluctuations
when profit or loss denominated 1n each functional currency of the group s translated iato US
Dollars on conselidation

The Company uses denvatives to reduce cash flow volatility associated with foreign exchange
rate changes In 2012 and 2011, the Company used foreign exchange forwards and swaps to
economically hedge 1its exposure to fluctuations in Russian Ruble, Euro, Sterling, Swiss Francs,
Turkish Lira, Taiwan Dollars, Brazihan Real and certain other currencies All foreign currency
dervative contracts have mawmnties of twelve months or less

The Company does not designate derivative instrumenis 1n accounung hedge relationships
Accordingly, all changes 1n the fair value of denvatives are recorded n the mcome statement

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 1s the risk that the Company’s interest expense will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates The Company’s exposure to the nsk of changes 1n market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations (including bonds) In connection
with the acqusition of Gallaher in 2007, the Company incurred floating-rate indebtedness and
assumed the acquiree’s fixed-rate debt obligations To reduce its cost of borrowing and to
manage its nisk related to nterest rate fluctuations, the Company uses fixed-to-floating nterest
rate swaps maturing through 2013

At December 31, 2012 after aking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately
58% (2011 31%) of the Company’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest
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Foreign currency arrangements (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change 1n interest rates,
with all other vanables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax from the impact of
floatmg rate borrowings

(in mullions of USD) (Increase) / {Increase) /
decrease in decrease in profit
basis points bhefore tax

(1n millions of USD)

GBP +[00Bp s
Euro +100Bp 2
GBP -100Bp (5)
Euro -100Bp (2)
Credit risk

Credit nsk relates to the nsk that a counter-party will default on its contractual obligations
resulting 1in financial loss to the Company The Company 15 exposed to credit nisk from its irade
receivables due from cusiomers, as well as from cash and cash deposits and dervative financial
instruments transacted with financial institutions

The Company performs appropriate credit checks on customers before sales commence The
process for momitoring and managing credit nsk once sales to the customer have been established
varies depending on local practices in the countries concemed Certain terntories have bank
guarantees, other guarantces and credit insurance provided in the Company’s favor m respect of
trade receivables The issuance and terms of msurance and guarantees are dependent on local
practices Apart from Megapohs group, the largest customer of the Company, the Company does
not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty

Cash deposits and other financral instruments give nise to credit risk on the amounts due from
counterparties To mitigate the counterparty credit rnisk, the Company has a policy of only
entering 1nto contracts with carefully selected major financial institutions based upon their credit
ratings and other factors, and maintains strict dollar and term hmits that correspond to each
mstitution’s credit rating Generally, the Company targets a long-term counterparty credit rating
of at least A/A2 Counterparty credit risk 1s managed on a giobal basis by miung the aggregate
amount and duration of exposure to any one counterparty, taking into account its credit rating
The credit ratings of all counterparties are reviewed regularly At December 31, 2012 there were
no significant concentrations of credit nsk with any individual counterparty or group of
counterparties related to the Company’s use of denvanve contracts
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Foreign currency arrangements (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2012, the fair value of the long-term portion of the bonds, 1ssued by the
Company, amounted to USD 717 mullion (2011 USD 1,100 milhion) and a corresponding
carrytng amount of USD 662 (2011 USD 1,034)

As of December 31, 2012, the fair value of the short-term portion of the bonds did not differ from
the carrying amount of USD 402 million (2011 USD nil)

Financial assets and habihities measured at far value subsequent to 1mtial recogmtion arc as
follows

December 31, 2012

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
(1n millions of USD)
Assets
Debt securities 1 - - 1
Denvative asscts - 41 - 41
Total assets 1 41 - 42
Liabilities
Derivative habihies - 47 - 47
Total liabilities - 47 - 47
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Foreign currency arrangements (Continued)

The aggregate notional amounts and fair values of the Company’s outstanding foreign exchange

and nterest rate derivative contracts were as follows

Asset Derivatives
(in millions of USD)
Balance Sheet location

Foreign exchange swaps Accrued income and
others

Interest rate caps Accrued income and
others

Interest rate swaps Accrued income and
others

Liabilty Derivatives
(in millions of USD)
Balance Sheet location

Foreign exchange swaps Other current habilities
Interest rate swaps Other current habilities

The impact of dertvative contracts on the 2012 statement of income was as follows

(i mutlions of USD) Statement of income location

Foreign exchange swaps

Net foreign exchange result

Fair  Notional
Value Value
39 3,600

- 402

2 402

41 4,404
Fair  Notional
Yalue Value
45 1,950

2 24

47 1,974
Gain / (Loss)

(6)

©)
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Notes to the specific items of the consolidated statement of income

Net sales (12)

All sales are generated with tobacco products, mamly being cigarettes

Net sales per geographical areas are as follows

(1n millions of USD) 2012 2011

Europe 5,887 5,921
CIS 4,054 3,738
Asia Pacific 1,184 1,192
Americas 397 391
Others 1,574 1,303
Total 13,096 12,545

Cost of sales

In 2012 USD 57 mullion (2011 USD 46 million) was recogmized as an expense within cost of

sales related to wrnite down of inventornes

Salaries, social security charges and pension costs

The costs for wages and salaries, social security charges and pension costs are included in cost of

sales, selling expenses and general and administrative expenses, and total as follows

(in milhions of USD) 2012 2011
Wages and salaries 1,603 1,527
Social secunty charges 227 201
Pension cost 187 188
2,017 1,916
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Amortization and depreciation expenses

Amortization expenses related to intangible fixed assets and depreciation expenses related to
tangible fixed assets are included n costs of sales, selling and related expenses and general and

admumuistrative ¢xpenses, and totaled as follows

(1n millions of USD) 2012 2011

Amortization for the year 1,245 1,226

Deprecianon for the year 343 388
1,588 1,614

Auditor fees

Total fees charged by Deloitte to the Group were as follows

(i mullions of USD) 2012 2011

Audit fees 9 9

Tax fees 2 2

All qther fees 2 2

13 13

The fees paid for the audit of the statutory financial statements of JT International Group Holding
B V, rendered by Deloitte Accountants B V, Amsterdam, amounted to USD 111 thousands and

USD 118 thousands for the years 2012 and 2011, respectively
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Employee information

The average number of personnel emploved by JT1 during the year was

The Netherlands
Europe

CIS

Americas

Asia Pacific
Others

Net interest result (13)
(in milhons of USD)

Interest income from third parties
Interest expenses to third parties

2012 2011
110 104
10,392 10,462
8,282 8,490
1,955 2513
1,800 1,817
4,054 3426
26,593 26,812
2012 2011

56 62
(159) (174)
(103) (112)
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Income taxes (14)

The differences between the provision (benefit) for income taxes and income taxes computed at
statutory Dutch income tax rates are explained as follows

{(in millions of USD) 2012 2011
Result on ordinary activities before taxation 2107 1,787
Income taxes computed at statutory Dutch tax rates (25%) 527 447
Increase / (decrease) n valuatton allowance on deferred tax

positions 72 (44}
Non-deductible expenses, net of non-taxable income 307 287
Increase of uncertain tax positions, net (53) 134
Cost of earnings repatriation 93 51
Foreign tax rate differential (223) (232}
Change n substantively enacted or enacted tax rates 27 (25)
Others 18 (16)
Provisions for income taxes 712 602
Effective tax rate m % 338 337

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, JTI had net operaung losses (NOL) of USD 1 3 bilhon and
USD 15 billion respectively, which are available to reduce future taxable income of JTI and
certam international subsidiaries Approximately USD 733 mullion of NOL expires withuin §5
years, with the remainder having no expiration date under current laws Deferred taxes of USD
161 mullion were recognized 1n respect of these losses

At December 31, 2012 JTI had tax credits carried forward of USD 12 mullion (2011 USD 10
mulhion) having an expiry date within 15 years and USD 33 mulhon (2011 USD 31 mullion)
having no expiry date Deferred taxes of USD 1 mullion were recogmzed 1n respect of these
credits

The provisions for income taxes on items of other comprehensive gains and losses amounted to a
gain of USD 95 mullion (2011 USD 27 mullion loss)
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2012
{before proposed appropriation of the result)

Assets
(1n mudlions of USD) December, December,
31,2012 31, 2011

Fixed assets
Financial fixed assets (1) 19,851 18,820
Current assets
Receivables from group companies 24 4
Total assets 19,875 18,824
Shareholder’s equity and liabilities
(in millions of USD)

December, December,

31, 2012 31, 2011
Equity attributable to equity holder (2)
Share capital 1,800 1,789
Share premium 14,314 14,314
Retamed earnings 3,256 2,403
Currency translation adjustment (848) (830)
Unappropnated result 1,353 1,148
19,875 18,824

Total equity and liabilities 19,875 18,824
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2012

(1n mullions of USD) 2012 2011

Share 1n net result of subsidianies, net of tax 1,353 1,148
Other results - -
Net result for the year 1,353 1,148
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

Accounting principles

The company financial statements have been prepared according with Title 9, Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code

General accounting principles for the preparation of the financial statements
For the general principles for the preparanon of the financial statements, the principles for
valuation of assets and habilities and determination of the result, as well as for the notes to the

specific assets and liabilities and the results, reference 1s made to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, 1f not presented otherwise here aftier

Company statement of income
Since the results of the Company are included in the consolidated statement of income, the

Company financial statements only contain an abridged statement of income 1n accordance with
article 2 402 of the Netherlands Csvil Code

Notes to the specific items of the balance sheet

Financial fixed assets (1)

The financial fixed assets consist of participations i group companies The movements in
financial fixed assets were as follows

(in mullions of USD) 2012 2011
Balance as of December 31 18,820 17,903
Share 1n net result of subsidiaries, net of tax 1,353 1,148
Currency translation adjustments (18) (260)
Hedge net investment, net of tax - 48
Addiional minimum pension Liability, net of tax (284) (18)
Dividends received (16) q))
Disposal of participation 1n a subsidiary (3) -
Others ) -
Balance as of December 31 19,851 18,820

The hist of directly and indirectly held mvestments of the Company 1s filed with the Trade
Register i line with article 2 379 sub 5 of the Netherlands Civil Code
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Equity attributable to equity holder (2)
Movements are as follows
Currency  Unappro-

(in mullions of USD) Share Share Retained  translation pnated Total Total
capital premium earnings  adjustments result 2012 2011

Balance as of

January 1, 1,789 14,314 2,403 (830) 1,148 18,824 17,906
Appropnation of

net result pnor year - - 1,148 - (1,148) - -
Hedge of net investment

losses, net of tax - - - - - - 48
Fore1gn currency translation

adjustments - - - (18) - (18} (260)
Actuanal losses on post-

employment benefit

obligations - - (28 — — (284) (i8)
Foreign currency translation

adjustment on share capital 11 - {1 — - - -
Net result for the year - — — — 1,353 1,353 1,148

Balance as of
December 31 1,800 14,314 3,256 (848) 1,353 19,875 18,824

The share capital and share premum are treated as paid-in capital for tax purposes, therefore
repayments are not subject to drvaidend withholding tax

Share capital issued

On October 17, 2012, the share capital of EUR 1,380,018,401, consisting of 3,000,040,002 shares
of EUR 0 46 each, was converted nto USD After the conversion, the share capital amouts to
USD 1,800,372 (thousands) and consists of 1,800,372 005 shares of USD 1 each

As of December 31, 201 I, the share capital denominated in EUR was translated into USD against
an USD/EUR exchange rate of 07715 The authorized share capital amounted to EUR
6,900,000,000 and was divided nto 15,000,000,000 shares of EUR 0 46 The 1ssued share capital
amounted to EUR 1,380,018,401 and consisted of 3,000,040,002 shares of EUR 0 46 each.
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Other notes and signing of the financial statements

Personnel

In 2012 the Company employed no employees (2011 0)

Remuneration of the Managing Board

In 2012, the Managing Board of the Company received remuneration for their services to the

Company and 1ts subsidianes amounting to USD 7 5 mullion (2011 mhil) The Managing Board
members were not subject to the so-called crisis tax
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Amsterdam, May 14,2013

Managing Board:

PJO de Labouchere

GGA Vranken

A Saeki

M I[war

J Fukuch

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V | AMSTERDAM
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Other information

Independent auditor’s report

Reference 15 made to the independent auditors’ report as included heremafter

Statutory rules concerning appropriation of result

According to the Article of Association of the Company, the net result of the Company 15 at the
disposal of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Appropriation of result for the financial year 2011

The annual report 2011 was adopted, by the shareholder, by means of a sharcholder’s resolution,
on May 7, 2012 The shareholders determined the appropriation of result in accordance with the
proposal being made to that end

Proposed appropriation of result for the financial year 2012

Pending the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the net result for the year 2012 1s
presented as unappropriated result in equity Management proposes to add the result for the year
to the retmined earmings

The financial statements do not yet reflect this proposal

Subsequent events

On March 1, 2013 JTT acquired all the outstanding shares of Al Nakhla Tobacco Company S A E
and Al Nakhla Tobacco Company — Free Zone S A E (collectively, “Nakhla”) The acquisition
does not have a matenal effect on the Company’s consohdated accounts

Headquartered in Egypt, Nakhla 1s one of the world’s leading waterpipe tobacco manufacturers
with an important presence mn its home market The acqusition of Nakhla offers the Company an
opportumty for growth 1n the waterpipe segment and widens the Company’s brand portfolio, in
line with our strategy to address the needs of adult consumers across a range of tobacco product
categories

At March 6, 2013, JTI granted an uncommutted multi-currency credit facility of USD 5 billion to

1ts parent company JT Inc , Japan for a period of 5 years JTI s not obliged to grant funds to JT
Inc 1f the funds are not available
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Independent auditor’s report

To The Shareholder of JT International Group Holding B V

Report on the annual accounts

We have audited the accompanying annual accounts 2012 of JT International Group Holding

B V, Amsterdam, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheet as at

December 31, 2012, the consohidated and company statement of income for the year then ended
and the notes, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Management's responsibility

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual accounts and
for the preparatton of the managing board report, both in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code Furthermore management 1s responsible for such intemal control as 1t
determunes 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the annual accounts that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Audiing This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audat
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts are free from material
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the annual accounts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the annual accounts, whether
due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts 1n order to design audit procedures that
are appropnate n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entily's mtemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual accounts

Oeloiite Accountants B V 13 registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce and Member of
Industry in Rotterdam number 24362853 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Deloitte.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

Opinion with respect to the annual accounts

In our opinion, the annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of
JT International Group Holding B V as at December 31, 2012 and of 1ts result for the year then
ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Cival Code,
we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the managing board
report, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared 1n accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of thus
Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2 392 sub 1 at b-h has been
annexed Further we report that the managmg board report, to the extent we can assess, 15
consistent with the annual accounts as required by Section 2 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code

Amsterdam, May 14, 2013

Deloitte Accountants B V

Signed on the original P Kuyjpers
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